
 
 
 

Development Control B 
Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Date:      Wednesday, 19 July 2023 
Time:      2.00 pm 
Venue:   The Council Chamber, City Hall, College Green, 
Bristol, BS1 5TR 
 
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public Forum are advised that all 
Development Control meetings are filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting 
pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except where there are confidential or exempt items) and the 
footage will be available for two years.  
If you ask a question or make a representation, then you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to 
have given your consent to this. If you do not wish to be filmed you need to make yourself known to the 
webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that 
persons attending meetings may take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and report on 
the meeting (Oral commentary is not permitted during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members 
of the public should therefore be aware that they may be filmed by others attending and that is not 
within the council’s control. 
 
Councillors: Ani Stafford-Townsend (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Lesley Alexander, Amal Ali, 
Fabian Breckels, Sarah Classick, Lorraine Francis, Katja Hornchen and Guy Poultney 
 
Copies to: Jeremy Livitt, Rachael Dando, David Fowler (Members' Office Manager (Conservative)), 
Stephen Fulham, Paul Shanks, Stephen Peacock (Chief Executive), Philippa Howson, John Smith 
(Executive Director: Growth & Regeneration), Jonathan Dymond, Peter Westbury, Simone Wilding 
and Jane Woodhouse 
 
Issued by: Jeremy Livitt, Democratic Services 
City Hall, PO Box 3399, Bristol, BS1 9NE 
E-Mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk 
Date: Monday, 10 July 2023 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


 
Development Control B Committee – Agenda 

 

 

Agenda 
  

1. Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information  2.00 pm 
 (Pages 4 - 7)  

2. Apologies for Absence   
   

3. Declarations of Interest   
To note any interests relevant to the consideration of items on the agenda. 
  
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which are not on the register of 
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.  
 

 

 

4. Minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 13th June 
2023  

 

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record. 
 

(Pages 8 - 13) 

  

5. Action Sheet   
The Committee is requested to note any outstanding actions listed on the rolling 
Action Sheet for DCB Committee. 
 

(Pages 14 - 15) 

  

6. Appeals   
To note appeals lodged, imminent public inquiries and appeals awaiting decision.  
 

(Pages 16 - 24) 

  

7. Enforcement   
To note enforcement notices. 
 

(Page 25) 

  

8. Public Forum   
Any member of the public or councillor may participate in public forum. The 
detailed  arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet 
at the back of this agenda. Please note that the following deadlines will apply 
in relation to this meeting: 

  
Questions: 
Written questions must be received three clear working days prior to the 

 



 
Development Control B Committee – Agenda 

 

 

meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received 
at the latest by 5pm on Thursday 13th July 2023. 

  
Petitions and statements: 
Petitions and statements must be received by noon on the working day prior 
to the meeting. For this meeting, this means that your submission must be 
received at the latest by 12 Noon on Tuesday 18th July 2023. 

  
The statement should be addressed to the Service Director, Legal Services, c/o 
The Democratic Services Team, City Hall, 3rd Floor Deanery Wing, College 
Green,  
P O Box 3176, Bristol, BS3 9FS or email - democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk 
  
PLEASE NOTE THAT IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK AT THE COMMITTEE, YOU ARE 
REQUESTED TO INDICATE THIS WHEN SUBMITING YOUR STATEMENT OR 
PETITION. ALL REQUESTS TO SPEAK MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY A WRITTEN 
STATEMENT. 
  
In accordance with previous practice adopted for people wishing to speak at 
Development Control Committees, please note that you may only be allowed 
1 minute subject to the number of requests received for the meeting. 

   

9. Planning and Development   
To consider the following applications for Development Control Committee B -  
 

(Page 26) 
 

a) Planning Application Number 21/05164/F - Land on West 
Side of Novers Hill 
 

(Pages 27 - 62) 

 

10. Date of Next Meeting   

The next meeting is scheduled to be held at 6pm on Wednesday 6th September 
2023 in the Council Chamber, City Hall, College Green, Bristol. 
 

 

 
 
 

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


www.bristol.gov.uk  

 

 

Public Information Sheet 
 

Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk. 
 

Public meetings 
 
Public meetings including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory meetings (where planning and licensing 
decisions are made) and scrutiny will now be held at City Hall. 
 
Members of the press and public who plan to attend City Hall are advised that you may be asked to 
watch the meeting on a screen in another room should the numbers attending exceed the maximum 
occupancy of the meeting venue. 
 

COVID-19 Prevention Measures at City Hall (June 2022) 
 
When attending a meeting at City Hall, the following COVID-19 prevention guidance is advised:  

• promotion of good hand hygiene: washing and disinfecting hands frequently 
• while face coverings are no longer mandatory, we will continue to recommend their use in 

venues and workplaces with limited ventilation or large groups of people. 
• although legal restrictions have been removed, we should continue to be mindful of others as 

we navigate this next phase of the pandemic. 
 

COVID-19 Safety Measures for Attendance at Council Meetings (June 2022) 
 
We request that no one attends a Council Meeting if they:  

• are required to self-isolate from another country 
• are suffering from symptoms of COVID-19 or  
• have tested positive for COVID-19  

Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment  
Other o check with and  
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in 
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer.  Please give as much notice as 
possible.  We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular 
meeting. 
 
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment.  If you 
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer. 

  

Page 4

Agenda Item 1

http://www.bristol.gov.uk/


www.bristol.gov.uk  

 

 

Public Forum 
 
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most 
meetings.  Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published 
on the Council’s website before the meeting.  Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.   
 

The following requirements apply: 

• The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is 
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.  

• The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.   

 
Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer 
than this, then for reasons of cost, it may be that only the first sheet will be copied and made available 
at the meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine 
articles that may be attached to statements. 
 
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and 
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee and published within 
the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public via publication on 
the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of Information Act 
requests in the future. 
 
We will try to remove personal and identifiable information.  However, because of time constraints we 
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information 
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain.  Other committee papers may be placed on the 
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet. 

 

During the meeting: 

• Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions 
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.  

• There will be no debate on statements or petitions. 
• The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that 

your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will 
have the greatest impact. 

• Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as 
short as one minute. 

• If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to 
speak on the groups behalf. 

• If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken 
your statement will be noted by Members. 

• Under our security arrangements, please note that members of the public (and bags) may be 
searched. This may apply in the interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all 
attending.   

Page 5

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk


www.bristol.gov.uk  

 

 

• As part of the drive to reduce single-use plastics in council-owned buildings, please bring your own 
water bottle in order to fill up from the water dispenser. 

 
For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution 
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution  

 

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings  
 
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full 
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except 
where there are confidential or exempt items).  If you ask a question or make a representation, then 
you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have given your consent to this.  If you do not wish to 
be filmed you need to make yourself known to the webcasting staff.  However, the Openness of Local 
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that persons attending meetings may take 
photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and report on the meeting  (Oral commentary is 
not permitted during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members of the public should therefore 
be aware that they may be filmed by others attending and that is not within the council’s control. 
 
The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-
website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services  

Page 6

https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution
http://www.bristol.public-i.tv/site/
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services
http://www.bristol.gov.uk/about-our-website/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services


Development Control Committee Debate and Decision Process 

Stage 3:  
Member Questions and 
Clarifications of the 
Proposal. 
Officer Responses 

Stage 4:  
Member Debate 

1
 A Motion must be Seconded in order to be formally 

accepted. If a Motion is not Seconded, the debate 

continues 

Stage 1:  
Public Forum 
Statements 

Stage 2:  
Officer Report & 
Recommendation 

2 
An Amendment can occur on any formally approved Motion (ie. one that has been Seconded) 

prior to Voting. An Amendment must itself be Seconded to be valid and cannot have the effect 

of negating the original Motion. If Vote carried at Stage7, then this becomes the Motion which 

is voted on at Stage 8  

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Stage 5:  
CHAIR will either move a MOTION in accordance with the 
Recommendation (to test if this is what Committee want to 
do) or seek another Member of the Committee to do this.  
 
If SECONDED1 go to stages 6 to 8.  
 
If MOTION to APPROVE is not seconded or carried the CHAIR 
will move a MOTION to DEFER a decision (allowing more time 
for Members to propose grounds for refusal if needed) and 
request that Officers bring back a report to the next meeting 
of the Committee with detailed advice on these grounds, 
supporting Members to make a final decision. 
 
If the Chair’s MOTION is not seconded or not carried  
the Chair will seek an alternative MOTION  
from the Committee 
 

Stage 6:  
Any 
AMENDMENT 
Moved & 
Seconded2 

Stage 7:  
VOTE on 
successful 
AMENDMENT  
(if required) 

Stage 8:  
VOTE on 
MOTION  
(either original 
Motion or as 
amended) 

IF CARRIED = DECISION 

IF LOST = NO DECISION & 

go back to Stage 5 

 

MAKING THE DECISION 

OFFICER PRESENTATION MEMBER QUESTIONS AND DEBATE 

P
age 7



 

 
 
 

Bristol City Council 
Minutes of the Development Control B Committee 

 

 
13 June 2023 at 6.00 pm 

 
 
 

Members Present:- 
Councillors: Ani Stafford-Townsend (Chair), Lesley Alexander, Amal Ali, Fabian Breckels, Lorraine Francis, 
Katja Hornchen, Guy Poultney, Andrew Brown and Richard Eddy 
 
Officers in Attendance:- 
Philippa Howson, John Smith (Executive Director: Growth & Regeneration), Peter Westbury, Simone 
Wilding and Louise deCordova (Democratic Services Manager) 
 
  
1 Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information 
 
The Chair welcomed attendees to the meeting and issued the safety information. 
  
2 Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Classick and Windows. Councillors Brown and Eddy attended in 
substitute. 
  
3 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Breckels declared that he was a trustee of We the Curious. He had not pre-determined the 
application and he had no pecuniary interest in planning application 22/00933/F- U Shed. 
  
4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 13th May 2023 
 
Resolved – that the Minutes were agreed as a correct record of the meeting. 
  
5 Action Sheet 
 
The Development Management, Team Manager referred to the action to clarify the position regarding 
covenant payments in respect of 149 Marksbury Road, whilst this was not a planning matter, a written 
response would be sought and provided to Members. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



 
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk 

 

 

  
6 Appeals 
 
Members requested an update on Wyevale Gardens. The Development Management, Team Manager 
advised that an update had been received by the Planning Inspectorate and a briefing note would be 
circulated to Councillors. 
  
7 Enforcement 
 
The Chair raised a concern regarding the dimensions of a billboard located on the outskirts of Cabot 
Circus.  The Development Management, Team Manager advised that the enquiry would be referred to 
Planning Enforcement for a response. 
  
8 Public Forum 
 
Members of the Committee received Public Forum Statements in advance of the meeting. The 
Statements were published online prior to the meeting.  Each statement was heard before the application 
it related to and taken fully into consideration by the Committee prior to reaching a decision. 
  
9 Planning and Development 
 
To consider the following Planning Applications: 
  
10 21/0376/F - 102 Gloucester Road, Bishopston, BS7 8BN 
 
The Development Management, Team Manager introduced the application which had been returned to 
Committee for further consideration after a cooling off period. The Officer presented a summary of the 
Committee’s grounds for refusal, as set out in the report.   
  
Officers had concluded that the reasons for refusal would be difficult to defend on appeal, particularly as 
a similar scheme had previously been approved.  
  
In response to Members questions the following points and clarifications were made: 
  

a. There was a risk of the Council incurring costs, should the Committee refuse the application, with 
the likelihood of the scheme going ahead on appeal. 

b. In comparing this application with a similar application that had been approved, it was noted that 
the key difference in the current scheme was that the retail proposition of the ground floor of the 
scheme had been significantly reduced in line with the increased residential use. 

Page 9



 
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk 

 

 

c. The location at Gloucester Road was a busy, well used junction and arterial route as well as being 
a pedestrian crossing. It was important to understand the impact of the proposed changes to 
current parking arrangements.  

d. In transport terms, removal of the off-street parking improved the safety of the footway. Weekly 
access to the entrance to the petrol station had been found to be minimal.  It was also noted that 
the junction was one of the widest in the city and the s278 would deal with that. 

e. Locations marked on plan were not the ones that officers had advised which had led to some 
confusion however, there was nothing on the highway that would not meet a road safety audit 
and there were no grounds for a road safety objection as everything proposed was manageable 
within the highway policy agreement. 

f. Section 278 is an agreement prior to commencement of works, a contract between the Council 
Highway Authority and the development.  Parties agreed the extent of work and estimated costs 
and a bond was put in place.  The scheme would then be delivered with a series of technical 
approvals at every stage to ensure the works met the adopted road safety standard.  Officers were 
confident that the right road safety work covered the entrance to the petrol station.  

  
There were no further comments and Councillor Stafford-Townsend moved the reasons for refusal in 
relation to PA No. 21/0376/F  and this was seconded by Councillor Eddy. On being put to the vote it was:- 
RESOLVED (1 for, 8 against) that the reasons for refusal be rejected. 
  
Councillor Stafford-Townsend then moved the original officer recommendation in relation to PA No. 
21/0376/F  and this was seconded by Councillor Breckels. On being put to the vote it was:- RESOLVED (7 
for, 2 against) that the application be granted 
  
11 22/00933/F - U Shed 
 
The Development Management, Team Officer presented the application, summarising the key issues, and 
confirmed the Officer’s recommendation for refusal as set out in the report.   
  
In response to Members questions, the following points and clarifications were made: 
  

a. With respect to the public consultation, a common feature of the objections received  were with 
regard to constraints of trade or contractual issues in respect of ZaZa Bazaar, which were material 
planning considerations reflected by officers comments in the report. 

b. Neither the number of objections received nor the time the objections had been received during 
the public consultation should determine the weight the Committee gave to them.  Members 
should be cognizant of the quality of the reasons rather than the quantity received. 

c. With respect to the objections that related to the impact of the height of the proposed 
development on neighbouring views it was noted that the aquarium was significantly higher than 
the proposed development. However, the aquarium was shielded from view by U shed and V 
shed.  The key matter was that the proposed development interrupted the consistent 2 storey 
maritime shed view on the waterfront and would be significantly taller.  

Page 10



 
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk 

 

 

d. The conservation character appraisal considered that the view of the Grade 1 listed cathedral was 
important and that the harm that should be attributed to the development was great. 

e. Historic England considered that some of the issues could have been addressed by a smaller scale 
development and deferred to the conservation officer to determine the harms and impacts on the 
conservation area.  The conservation and planning officers were clear that the development would 
harm the conservation area and in this instance there were insufficient public benefits not to 
recommend refusal.  

f. Referencing relevant policies in the report pack, it was noted that the submission from the 
council’s economic development team considered that the proposal would create new jobs.  
Economic Development Officers were not in attendance and Planning officers were not in a 
position to provide further information on the research or assumptions that supported the 
submission.  

g. The economic development team had commented that the development would contribute 
towards addressing the lack of grade A office supply in the city centre market. Heritage and 
Planning Officers were required to consider the development’s impact within the conservation 
area, on several listed buildings and the setting of 2 other conservation areas.  Officers weighed 
the public benefit of increased office space against the impact, noting that whilst there may be a 
need for office space there may be more suitable locations in the city centre which had less of an 
impact on the heritage assets. Overall in this instance there was not enough public benefit to 
outweigh the harms identified. 

h. An equalities assessment had been carried out to ensure level access was available to the new 
units and offices.  The representations received in relation to Za Za Bazaar had outlined that a 
diverse range of groups were using the building, however officers had no further information 
regarding this. 

i. There was no data available at the meeting to understand the level and proximity of empty office 
space in that location.  

j. The entrance to the walkway under the building measured 3m to the ceiling, passed the entrance, 
the measurement to the ceiling increases to 3.7m.  

k. Comments from the urban design team regarding adaptive reuse, referred to the ability of the 
building to be adapted and reused in its current form. 

l. It was understood that options to retrofit the building had been investigated by the applicant but 
due to the building construction it could not be retrofitted.  The frame of the existing building 
would not have been suitable for the size and scale of the development. The way the floors inside 
of the building were designed did not make it possible to retrofit it to the ceiling height of grade a 
offices and have four floors within it.  

m. This was a car free development with sustainable transport options available.  The Transport Team 
had not raised objections noting that there are 2 large carparks and various bus stops nearby. 

n. There is a demand for high quality office accommodation which has held up post covid and is 
reflected in comments from the Economic Development Team 

o. The conversation area character appraisal is clear that this area has had an important leisure 
function for many years.  It was key to attracting tourists and to the area remaining vibrant.  It is a 
dedicated leisure frontage which means that the policy assessment is looking to see leisure use 
and active use situated on the ground floor.   

Page 11



 
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk 

 

 

  
During debate, Councillors made the following comments: 
  

p. This was a critical area for city with a large number of jobs linked to its day-to-day operations as 
well as the knock-on impacts to supply chains. As heard from public forum statements received 
from local businesses a number of jobs hang in balance.  This is a key tourism site and part of the 
key local offer, one of the few premises that draws people in from all over the city from a huge 
range of backgrounds. The data supporting the economic development benefits were unclear and 
it was not clear what the economic impact of working from home had done to office supply.  The 
economic promises this development made versus the significant loss of jobs in short term was of 
concern. 

q. This was a fairly new 30-year-old building and the reasons for taking it down were 
unsubstantiated. The heritage of the area should be supported and didn’t need another luxurious 
office block.  

r. The representations heard with regard to the public realm at the rear of V shed were that this was 
a dismal place to be, and improvements there would be welcome.  There was agreement with 
officers’ presentation that the series of buildings that made up the waterfront conservation area 
profile deserved to be retained. 

s. The only reason to demolish a 30-year old building would be due to structural damage. A 
significantly larger building would be disruptive to the area. There was no reason why the 
landscaping suggested couldn’t happen anyway, with pavements widened and trees planted to 
create a welcoming presence.  It was not clear that the leisure area was the right place for new 
office space. The footfall that Za Za received was significant and the loss of this would have an 
impact on surrounding businesses. The recommendations and reasons for refusal were sound. 

t. Similar concerns had been flagged by officers on conservation and heritage grounds about the 
development of the Arc and We the Curious and Members had unanimously supported the side of 
progress deeming that there was zero to  marginal damage to the conservation site against the 
economic cost benefit to the leisure industry.  This decision would be a key precedent. It was 
important to honour Bristol’s rich history whilst acknowledging that Bristol was a living, breathing 
city where people needed to work rest and play. It was important to house people and create jobs 
and acknowledge that this was not a working commercial dock. The enhancements to the public 
realm and landscaping were all positive things and 500 jobs would be preserved in the long term. 

u. Others deemed that this proposal was very different to the Arc which would have been a movable 
structure and with significant contribution to the leisure offer.  The proposed development was 
considered a static office building.  

v. It was important to support the leisure industry at this time. There was a need for a range of jobs, 
not just office-based jobs.  The draw to the area the current business provided was considered 
significant in comparison to that of an office. 

  
Councillor Stafford-Townsend then moved the officer recommendation in relation to PA No. 22/00933/F 
 and this was seconded by Councillor Brown. On being put to the vote it was:- RESOLVED (7 for, 2 against) 
that the officer recommendation for refusal be upheld. 
  

Page 12



 
democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk 

 

 

  
12 22/03645/F - Inns Court Open Space, Hartcliffe Way 
 
The Development Management, Team Officer presented the application and summarised the key issues 
of the report.   
  
In debate, the following points were made: 
  

a. This was a great scheme and it was positive to see youth provision in this area of the city  
b. This would be of significant benefit to south Bristol where there are particular challenges and 

would benefit the young people who use it 
c. The location of the scheme would service 4 wards immediately adjacent to it and which contain 

some of the most deprived neighbourhoods in the city.  There should be similar provision of sites 
across the city 

d. It would have been useful for the equalities impact assessment to explain the equalities benefits 
to this underrepresented group. The consideration which had been given to  enabling disabled 
young people to use the site was welcomed 

e. Maintenance of the current tree cover was welcomed  
  
Councillor Stafford-Townsend then moved the officer recommendation in relation to PA No. 22/03645/F 
 and this was seconded by Councillor Poultney. On being put to the vote it was:- RESOLVED unanimously 
that the application be granted with delegated policy decisions to officers. 
  
  
13 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting is scheduled to be held at 2pm on Wednesday 19th July 2023 in the Council Chamber, 
College Green, Bristol. 
 
 
 
 
Meeting ended at 7.35 pm 
 
CHAIR  __________________ 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
 

 
Action Sheet – Development Control Committee B 

 
Date of 

Meeting (s) 
Item/report Action  Responsible 

officer(s)/Councillor 
 

Action taken / progress 

Discussed at 
Meetings on 

05th April 
2023, 10th 
May 2023 

and 13th June 
2023 

Agenda Item 6: 
Appeals Report - 
149/149A & Land To 
Rear Of Marksbury 
Road Bristol BS3 
5LD 
Committee - Appeal 
against refusal 
Demolition of 149A 
Marksbury Road and 
erection of 5no. 
single storey dwellings 
on land to the rear – 
Appeal by applicant 
successful and costs 
awarded against BCC 
as the Inspector found 
that the reasons for 
refusal were not 
substantiated 

Confirm cost of 
resolving the covenant 
on the land with legal 
officers and advise the 
Committee  

Peter Westbury 13th June 2023 Committee Meeting - Peter 
Westbury advises that he will write to the 
Committee to update them with progress on 
the situation concerning the covenant 

13th June 
2023 

Appeals – Wyevale 
Garden Centre 

Following a recent 
judgment, a briefing 
note to be submitted to 
the Committee 

Peter Westbury  

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 5



 
 

Date of 
Meeting (s) 

Item/report Action  Responsible 
officer(s)/Councillor 

 

Action taken / progress 

13th June 
2023 

Enforcement – Cabot 
Circus Billboard 

Consult with 
enforcement colleagues 
and prepare a briefing 
note to be submitted to 
the Committee 

Peter Westbury  

 
 

P
age 15



REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE

LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B

19th July 2023

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Householder appeal

Date lodged

Text0:1 Southmead 37 Ullswater Road Bristol BS10 6DH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Single storey rear extension and enlarge the existing garden 
annex building to use as storage, office and WC space.

19/04/2023

Text0:2 Clifton 21 Constitution Hill Bristol BS8 1DG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Mansard roof extension. 25/04/2023

Text0:3 Bishopsworth 45 Bridgwater Road Bristol BS13 7AX 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Rear and side dormer roof extensions. 05/06/2023

Text0:4 Southville Advertising Displays (1102-0543) Outside Asda (Opp. Philip 
Street) Bedminster Parade Bristol BS3 4HH

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replace existing double-sided bus shelter advertising 
displays (comprising one digital display and one internally 
illuminated 6-sheet display) with double-sided digital displays. 
Replacement digital displays will portray static advertising 
images that change every 10 seconds.

29/06/2023

Text0:5 Eastville Advertising Displays Bus Shelter (Ref. 1102-0009) In Front 
Of  567 Fishponds Road Fishponds Bristol BS16 3AF 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replace existing double-sided internally illuminated 6-sheet 
bus shelter advertising displays with double-sided digital 
displays.  Replacement digital displays will portray static 
advertising images that change every 10 seconds.

29/06/2023

Page 1 of 910 July 2023 Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Text0:6 Frome Vale Advertising Displays Bus Shelter (1102-0538) Opposite 
Morrisons Fishponds Road Fishponds Bristol  BS16 3UH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replace existing double-sided bus shelter advertising 
displays (comprising one digital display and one internally 
illuminated 6-sheet display) with double-sided digital displays. 
Replacement digital displays will portray static advertising 
images that change every 10 seconds.

29/06/2023

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

Written representation

Date lodged

Text0:7 Brislington West Wyevale Garden Centre Plc Bath Road Brislington Bristol 
BS31 2AD 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for hardstanding. (C/22/3306445). 04/10/2022

Text0:8 Brislington West Wyevale Garden Centre Plc Bath Road Brislington Bristol 
BS31 2AD 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for builders yard.  (C/22/3306441). 04/10/2022

Text0:9 Brislington West Wyevale Garden Centre Plc Bath Road Brislington Bristol 
BS31 2AD 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for bunds & portable buildings.  
(C/22/3306446).

04/10/2022

Text0:10 Brislington West Wyevale Garden Centre Plc Bath Road Brislington Bristol 
BS31 2AD 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for plant equipment.  
(C/22/3306444).

04/10/2022

Text0:11 Lockleaze 36 Stothard Road Bristol BS7 9XL 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement Notice enforcement for the erection of detached 
building in garden without planning permission.

17/10/2022

Page 2 of 910 July 2023 Page 17



Text0:12 Stoke Bishop 2 Bramble Drive Bristol BS9 1RE 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for front boundary not completed 
as per plans approved as part of planning permission 
21/00431/H and additional planting.

22/11/2022

Text0:13 Hillfields 11 The Greenway Bristol BS16 4EZ 

Appeal against non-determination

Erection of two storey, 2 bed detached dwellinghouse, with 
landscaping and parking.

14/12/2022

Text0:14 Cotham 71 Arley Hill Bristol BS6 5PJ 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for change of use of the building 
 to large HMO with 8 bedrooms.

15/12/2022

Text0:15 Cotham 71 Arley Hill Bristol BS6 5PJ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Change of use of the upper floors residential unit from small 6 
bedroom HMO C4 to large HMO (Sui Generis Use) for 8 
bedrooms (Retrospective).

15/12/2022

Text0:16 Southville 20 Mount Pleasant Terrace Bristol BS3 1LF 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for change of use to HMO (C4) 
without planning permission.

01/02/2023

Text0:17 Bishopsworth 71 Dangerfield Avenue Bristol BS13 8DX 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed new dwelling to side. 01/02/2023

Text0:18 Redland 186 Redland Road Bristol BS6 6YH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Retention of stainless steel/glass balustrade, at roof level. 03/03/2023

Text0:19 Redland 186 Redland Road Bristol BS6 6YH 

Appeal against an enforcement notice

Enforcement notice appeal for an installation of stainless 
steel/glass balustrade at roof level to form roof terrace without 
planning permission.

03/03/2023

Page 3 of 910 July 2023 Page 18



Text0:20 Bedminster 149 West Street Bedminster Bristol BS3 3PN

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Part change of use from an office to a C3 dwelling unit. 31/03/2023

Text0:21 Central 2 Clare Street City Centre Bristol BS1 1XR 

Appeal against non-determination

Temporary Static, Illuminated Shroud Advertisement. 04/04/2023

Text0:22 Ashley Dainton Self Storage New Gatton Road Bristol BS2 9SH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed 1no. internally illuminated display signboard. 04/04/2023

Text0:23 Hotwells & 
Harbourside

2 - 10 Hanover Place Bristol BS1 6XT 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Window replacement works (all new windows to be uvpc). 06/04/2023

Text0:24 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

29 Hobhouse Close Bristol BS9 4LZ 

Committee

Appeal against non-determination

Retrospective application for retention of dwelling. 06/04/2023

Text0:25 St George Central 20 Grantham Road Bristol BS15 1JR 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Conversion and extension of existing garage to rear garden 
to provide additional living accommodation associated to the 
main dwelling.

13/04/2023

Text0:26 Hengrove & 
Whitchurch Park

Bamfield Streetworks  Bamfield Bristol BS14 0XD

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Application to determine if prior approval is required for a 
proposed telecommunications installation: Proposed 15.0m 
Phase 8 Monopole C/W wrapround cabinet at base and 
associated ancillary works.

13/04/2023

Text0:27 Knowle 318 Wells Road Knowle Bristol BS4 2QG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed kitchen extraction from A3 Unit below. 13/04/2023

Page 4 of 910 July 2023 Page 19



Text0:28 Easton 1B & 1C Woodbine Road Bristol BS5 9AJ 

Appeal against non-determination

Change of use from 2 dwelling houses (C3a) to 2 small HMO 
for up to 6 people (C4).

20/04/2023

Text0:29 Stoke Bishop Telecoms Equipment Edge Of Green Shirehampton Road 
Sea Mills Bristol BS9 2EQ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Application to determine if prior approval is required for a 
proposed telecommunications installation: Proposed 15.0m 
Phase 9 slimline Monopole and associated ancillary works.

21/04/2023

Text0:30 Stoke Bishop The Helios Trust 17 Stoke Hill Bristol BS9 1JN 

Appeal against non-determination

Change of use from doctors surgery to specialist educational 
needs school for children and therapy centre, and land to 
residential garden adjacent 19a Pitch and Pay Lane.

21/04/2023

Text0:31 Knowle Land At Junction With Redcatch Road St Agnes Avenue 
Bristol BS4 2HQ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erection of dwelling (Renewal of planning permission granted 
on appeal ref APP/Z0116/W/18/3196399 - BCC 16/06418/F) - 
self build.

04/05/2023

Text0:32 Knowle 100 Redcatch Road Bristol BS4 2HQ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Demolition and re-positioning of curtilage listed stone wall 
with brick capping.

04/05/2023

Text0:33 Ashley 6 Sussex Place Bristol BS2 9QW 

Delegated decision

Appeal against non-determination

Conversion of this single dwelling into two flats and a 
maisonette, including provision of bin/cycle storage facilities 
and associated external alterations.

10/05/2023

Text0:34 Hengrove & 
Whitchurch Park

127 East Dundry Road Bristol BS14 0LP 

Appeal against non-determination

Two storey rear and single storey side extension. 15/05/2023

Page 5 of 910 July 2023 Page 20



Text0:35 Knowle 100 Redcatch Road Bristol BS4 2HQ 

Appeal against non-determination

Erection of dwelling (Renewal of planning permission granted 
on appeal ref APP/Z0116/W/18/3196399 - BCC 16/06418/F) - 
self build.

16/05/2023

Text0:36 Knowle 100 Redcatch Road Bristol BS4 2HQ 

Appeal against non-determination

Demolition and re-building of curtilage listed stone wall with 
brick capping in the same position as the existing wall.

16/05/2023

Text0:37 Clifton Down Redland Filling Station Hampton Road Bristol BS6 6JA 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Installation of vehicle charging points and associated 
electrical infrastructure and associated works. (Retrospective)

16/05/2023

Text0:38 Bishopston & 
Ashley Down

387 Gloucester Road Horfield Bristol BS7 8TS 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

The retention of an Automated Teller Machine and associated 
signage.

16/05/2023

Text0:39 Cotham Garage To Rear Of  3 Clyde Park Bristol BS6 6RR 

Appeal against non-determination

Demolition of garage and erection of dwellinghouse (Use 
Class C3).

18/05/2023

Text0:40 Brislington West 21 Wick Crescent Bristol BS4 4HG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against non-determination

Proposed development of two storey detached 2-bed 
dwelling, located within the rear garden.

23/05/2023

Text0:41 Ashley 6 Sussex Place Bristol BS2 9QW 

Appeal against non-determination

Conversion of this single dwelling into two flats and a 
maisonette including the renovation of the property as a listed 
building.

24/05/2023

Text0:42 Cotham 1 Eastfield Road Cotham Bristol BS6 6AA 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed extension and alterations to existing end of terrace 
to form 7 no. 1 bedroom self-contained flats and 1 no. 2 
bedroom self-contained flat over 4 floors.

21/06/2023

Page 6 of 910 July 2023 Page 21



Text0:43 St George Central The Mechanics Arms 123 Clouds Hill Road Bristol BS5 7LH 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Extension and change of use from public house to six 
apartments.

21/06/2023

Text0:44 St George 
Troopers Hill

106 Fir Tree Lane Bristol BS5 8BJ 

Appeal against non-determination

Demolition of dwellinghouse and erection of a three-storey 
building comprising 9no. self-contained flats with associated 
soft and hard landscaping.

22/06/2023

Text0:45 Clifton Down The Vincent Redland Hill Bristol BS6 6BJ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed retention of 2no. hoarding signs (temporary 
consent for 2 years).

23/06/2023

Text0:46 Henbury & Brentry The Dower House Station Road Henbury Bristol BS10 7QJ 

Appeal against non-determination

Proposed 1no. detached 4 bedroom dwelling and garage with 
on-site parking and associated works.

27/06/2023

Text0:47 St George West Land At Junction Of Church Road And Chalks Road Bristol 
BS5 9EN 

Appeal against non-determination

Erection of a third floor to consented scheme 22/00111/X, to 
provide 1no. additional self-contained flat, including 
alterations to approved external appearance.

28/06/2023

Text0:48 Knowle Advertising Displays Bus Shelter (1102-0029) Front Of 427 
Wells Road Knowle Bristol BS4 2QW 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replace existing double-sided internally illuminated 6-sheet 
bus shelter advertising displays with double-sided digital 
displays.  Replacement digital displays will portray static 
advertising images that change every 10 seconds.

29/06/2023

Text0:49 Central Advertising Displays Bus Shelter (1102-0268) Outside 
Yeamans House Clarence Road Bristol BS1 6PZ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Replace existing double-sided internally illuminated 6-sheet 
bus shelter advertising displays with double-sided digital 
displays.  Replacement digital displays will portray static 
advertising images that change every 10 seconds.

29/06/2023

Page 7 of 910 July 2023 Page 22



Text0:50 Clifton 22 Regent Street Bristol BS8 4HG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

First floor single storey flat with a green roof and courtyard 
area above the ground floor shop extension to the rear of No. 
22 Regent Street. To create an additional bedroom to the 
existing attic flat with a matching tiled mansard roof between 
22 and 24 Regent Street. To renovate and restore the old 
shopfront to new arched windows to match previous existing.

30/06/2023

Text0:51 Clifton 22 Regent Street Bristol BS8 4HG 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Additional first floor, single storey flat with a green roof and 
courtyard area above the ground floor shop extension to the 
rear of No. 22 Regent Street. To create an additional 
bedroom to the existing attic flat with a matching tiled 
mansard roof between 22 and 24 Regent Street. To renovate 
and restore the old shopfront to new arched windows to 
match previous existing.

30/06/2023

Item Ward Address, description and appeal type

List of appeal decisions

Decision and 
date decided

Text0:52 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

10 Rylestone Grove Bristol BS9 3UT 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Demolition of existing detached house and erection of 6 
bedroom replacement detached dwelling with integral garage, 
associated landscaping and adjusted access. (Self Build).

Appeal dismissed

14/06/2023

Text0:53 Ashley The Cottage 28 Ashfield Place Bristol BS6 5BF 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Retention of enclosed roof terrace.

Appeal dismissed

20/06/2023

Text0:54 Southmead 345 Southmead Road Bristol BS10 5LW 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Erect 2 bed dwelling.

Appeal allowed

16/06/2023

Text0:55 Southville 9 Carrington Road Bristol BS3 2AQ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Proposed change of use from a single Dwelling House (Use 
Class C3) to a Small Six-Bedroom House of Multiple 
Occupation (HMO) (use Class C4).

Appeal dismissed

23/06/2023

Page 8 of 910 July 2023 Page 23



Text0:56 Westbury-on-Trym 
& Henleaze

Grass Verge Of Passage Road Junction With Greystoke 
Avenue Westbury Bristol BS9 3HR

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

Application to determine if prior approval is required for a 
proposed upgrade of the existing installation, involving the 
installation of a 20 metre high monopole supporting antennas 
with a wraparound equipment cabinet at the base, the 
installation of 3 no. additional equipment cabinets, the 
removal of the existing 11.5 metre high monopole supporting 
antennas, the removal of 1 no. existing cabinet, and ancillary 
development thereto.

Appeal allowed

29/06/2023

Text0:57 St George 
Troopers Hill

St Aidans Church Fir Tree Lane Bristol BS5 8TZ 

Delegated decision

Appeal against refusal

The removal of 3 No. antennas and the upgrade of 3 No. 
antennas, the installation of 1 No. GPS node and associated 
ancillary development thereto.

Appeal dismissed

06/07/2023

Page 9 of 910 July 2023 Page 24



REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE

LIST OF ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED

Item Ward Address, description and enforcement type Date issued

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B

19th July 2023

Cotham 89 High Kingsdown Bristol BS2 8ER 08/06/2023

Change of use of property to small hmo use class 
C4.

Enforcement notice

1

10 July 2023

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



C:\uniform\temp\uf01664.rtf  10/07/2023  14:48 

 
Development Control  
19 July 2023 
Report of the Director: Economy of Place 
 
Index 
 
Planning Applications 
 
Item Ward Officer 

Recommendation 
Application No/Address/Description 
 

    
1 Filwood Refuse 21/05164/F - Land On The West Side Of Novers 

Hill Bristol    
Erection of 144 no. dwellings, including 43 no. 
affordable housing units (30%), along with 2 no. 
access points from Novers Hill, the provision of 
play facilities and public open space with 
associated works. (MAJOR). 
 

    
 
index 
v5.0514 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



10/07/23  13:45   Committee report 

 

Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
 

 
ITEM NO.  1 
 

 
WARD: Filwood   
 
SITE ADDRESS: 

 
Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

 
APPLICATION NO: 

 
21/05164/F 
 

 
Full Planning 

DETERMINATION 
DEADLINE: 

31 December 2021 
 

Erection of 144 no. dwellings, including 43 no. affordable housing units (30%), along with 2 no. 
access points from Novers Hill, the provision of play facilities and public open space with 
associated works. (MAJOR). 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 
Refuse 

 
AGENT: 

 
Pegasus Planning Group 
First Floor South Wing 
Equinox North 
Great Park Road 
Almondsbury 
Bristol  BS32 4QL 
 

 
APPLICANT: 

 
Lovell Homes 
C/o Agent 
 

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date. 
 
LOCATION PLAN: 

  
DO NOT SCALE 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9a



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This application is brought to Committee because of the level of opposition to the 

application.  
 
1.2 During the consideration of this application, the amount of housing proposed has 

been reduced to 144 homes, including the provision of 43 affordable homes (30% 
provision).  

 
1.3 There are three key issues in the determination of this application:  
 

1. The principle of the site being used for housing. 
2. Whether the access arrangements to the site  acceptable. 
3. What the impact of the proposed development would be on the ecology of the 

area. 
 
 
2.0 SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
2.1 The application site is located on Novers Hill to the south of Bristol in the suburb of 

Knowle West.  
 
2.2 The site comprises large areas of open grassland and a dense wooded area through 

the centre of the site. The edge of the site to the north and west abut an industrial 
area with a garage, builder’s merchants and other light industrial uses with Hartcliffe 
Way beyond.  

 
2.3 The site is in the vicinity of predominantly two storey residential dwellings plus single 

and two storey industrial buildings. The housing fronting Novers Hill include a series 
of terraced and semi-detached dwellings at high level and, to the northern part of the 
site, a garage and parking area.  

 
2.4 The prominence of the site on the hillside gives views to Bristol including views of the 

Clifton suspension bridge, Cabot Tower and the Wills Memorial Building.  
 
2.5 The gradient of the site is sloped, steeply in some places, with the highest points to 

the south-east against Novers Hill and falls away to the north west.  
 
2.6 The central part of the site is designated as a Site of Nature Conservation Interest 

(SNCI).  
 
2.7 The site is located in Flood Zone 1 (low risk of flooding). 
 
2.8 The site is allocated for housing in the adopted Local Plan, 2011 (BS1108 and 

BS1114).  
 
3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING APPLICATION HISTORY 
 
3.1 There have been no recent planning applications. Historically the following 

applications were considered: 
 

00/02464/P - Outline application for mixed use to provide housing and publicly 
available open space. Appeal against non-determination dismissed in 2003 
(APP/Z0116/A/02/1093973) 

 

Page 28



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

02/02388/P - Outline application for mixed use to provide housing and publicly 
available open space.(Duplicate of Application No. 00/02464/P). Refused on 6th 
September 2002. 

 
3.2 It is noted that four applications dating from 1965-1981 for residential or industrial 

development (ref: 65/00769/P_U, 75/03278/P_S, 76/01103/P_S and 81/01337/P_S) 
do not contain any online records, but are all recorded as refused. 

 
4.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA) 
 
4.1 An EIA screening application was submitted under the provisions of the Town and 

Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 by the 
applicant on 15 January 2021 (Application Reference: 21/00200/SCR). On 11th 
February 2021, the Local Planning Authority confirmed that an EIA was not required. 

 
5.0 APPLICATION DETAILS 
 
5.1 This is an application for full planning permission for the erection of 144 no. 

dwellings, including 43 no. affordable housing units (30%), along with 2 no. access 
points from Novers Hill, the provision of play facilities and public open space with 
associated works.  

 
5.2 The central area of 'Important Open Space' and Site of Nature Conservation Interest 

is retained for public open space 
 
5.3 The proposal comprises the following mix of homes for the site. 
 

Open Market Homes 
 

 Unit 
Type 

Number Area (Square Metre) 

1 Bed Apartment  3 50.45 
2 Bed Apartment  7 61.22 
2 Bed  A 11 70.89 
3 Bed  B 20 85.28 
3 Bed Dual-Aspect C 11 95.41 
3 Bed Split-Level D 24 119.57 
4 Bed F 14 101.36 
4 Bed Split Level Type 1 G 5 135.27 
4 Bed Split Level Type 2 I 6 143.26 
Total  101  

 
Social Rent  
 

 Unit 
Type 

Number Area (Square Metre) 

1 Bed Apartment  6 50.45 
2 Bed Apartment  15 61.22 
2 Bed A 7 70.89 
3 Bed M4(3) E 1 107.40 
4 Bed M4 (3) H 1 114.74 
Flat Over Garage J 1 53.05 
Maisonette K 1 54.63 
Maisonette M4(3) K 1 50.07 
Total  33  

 

Page 29



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
Shared Ownership 
 

 Unit 
Type 

Number Area (Square Metre) 

3 Bed B 1 85.28 
1 Bed Apartment  3 50.47 
2 Bed Apartment  6 61.22 
Total  10  

 
Unit Types 

 
5.4 The homes proposed incorporate predomionantly a mixture of two storey pitched 

detached and semi detached dwellings and five blocks of flats divided into two parts 
of the overall site and separated by the Site of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI).  

 
A 2 Bed 763sq.m. Two storey pitched  slate roof semi detached dwellings 

incorporating some affordable housing social rent units. 
B 3 Bed 922 Two storey pitched  slate roof semi detached dwellings 

incorporating some affordable housing shared ownership 
units. 

C 3 Bed 912 Two storey iron grey finish weatherboard clad in timber 
house 

D 3 Bed 922 – Split Level Split three (front) and two (rear) storey rendered render 
dwelling incorporating slate pitched roof. Ground floor 
includes integral garage. 

E 3 Bed 922 – M4 (3) Two storey brick house 
F 4 Bed 1044 Two storey mixed brick and render dwellings with gable 

frontage and central pitched roof.  
G 4 Bed 1044 – Split Level Split three (front) and two (rear) storey rendered render 

dwelling incorporating slate pitched roof. Ground floor 
includes integral garage. 

H 4 Bed 1044 – M4 (3) Two storey pitched roof house 
I 4 Bed 1176 -  Split Level Split three (front) and two (rear) storey rendered render 

dwelling incorporating slate pitched roof. Ground floor 
includes integral garage. 

J 1 Bed FOG Brickwork flat over garage 
K Maisonette Two storey block 
L  Flat Block – Type A Block 1 - Three storey pitched roof flat block finished in 

render and ground floor brickwork and balconies  
M Flat Block – Type B Block 2 - Three storey pitched roof flat block finished in 

brickwork and render and balconies 
N Flat Block – Type C Block 3 - Three storey slate roof flat block incorporating a 

central entrance and render tower and balconies. 
O Flat Block – Type D Block 4 -Two storey mixed render / brickwork pitched roof 

block 
P Flat Block – Type E Block 5 -Three storey pitched roof hardi-plank cement fibre 

weatherboard cladding in timber effect Iron Grey finish 
 

Density 
 
5.5 The proposed density is 27 dwellings per hectare (excluding the SNCI land). 
 

Access to the site 
 
5.6 Vehicle crossovers are proposed for the Novers Hill and Barnack trading estates to 

the north of the site. These are proposed as per the existing provision and will be 
upgraded to suit the alignment of the route.  

Page 30



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
 
5.7 The application proposal includes a pedestrian cycle path along Novers Hill, 

pedestrian links within the site and pedestrian connections to neighbouring sites. 
 

Amendments 
 
5.8 During the consideration of this application, the Applicants have revised the scheme, 

making the following changes: 
 

• The reduction in quantum of development to 144 homes ascribed to amended 
layout, removal of one apartment block and reduction in apartment building height. 
Increase in green public open space resulting.  

 
• Amended affordable housing distribution to address updated tenure guidance since 
submission and layout revisions.  

 
• The introduction of split-level housing.  

 
• Alteration to elevational treatment and materials.  

 
• Alterations to detailed landscaping treatment.  

 
• Introduction of pedestrian link within the site to improve permeability between lower 
and higher roads on the southern parcel. • Introduction of shared use cycle path 
within southern parcel road layout to provide alternative cycle route.  

 
• Reconfiguration of the layout to safeguard possibility for 
pedestrian/bicycle/maintenance access to land to south, instead of adoptable road 
access.  

 
• Amended vehicle and cycle parking provision.  

 
• Various associated alterations to road layout, alignment and levels. 

 
6.0 EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT 
 
6.1 The public sector equalities duty is a material planning consideration as the duty is 

engaged through the public body decision making process. 

6.2 S149 of the Equalities Act 2010 provides that a public authority must in the exercise 
of its functions have due regard to: 

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment ,victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited under the Act 

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it 

(c) foster good relationships between persons who share a relevant characteristic 
and those who do not share it. 

6.3 During the determination of these applications due regard has been given to the 
impact of the scheme upon people who share the protected characteristics of age, 
disability, gender reassignment ,marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. In their assessment of 
these applications your officers are satisfied that any adverse impacts can be 

Page 31



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

addressed and mitigated through the detailed design of the buildings and the 
imposition of appropriate conditions. 

  
7.0 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (SCI) 
 

Process 
 
7.1 In support of their application, the Applicants submitted a Statement of Community 

Involvement. This states: 
 

“The consultation programme acknowledges the pre-application consultation advice 
set out in Bristol City Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (2015) and 
Guidelines for Pre Application Involvement (2018), as well as national planning policy 
and guidance on pre- application engagement within the NPPF and PPG. The 
applicant team also sought - where possible - to adhere to the Knowle West Alliance 
(KWA) Protocol for Pre-Planning Application Community Involvement, which the 
applicant team discussed in advance with the KWA’s coordinators. The consultation 
was undertaken online, in response to ongoing concerns about the COVID 
pandemic.  

 
7.2 The consultation started before the Government’s July 19 ‘Freedom Day’ though 

concerns were still being expressed by health leaders at that time. However, a 
freephone number was widely shared so residents could call to speak with the 
applicant’s team, and request paper copies of the proposals, feedback form and a 
Freepost envelope. 

 
7.3 The Bristol Neighbourhood Planning Network was consulted at the outset, to ensure 

the applicant was aware of all stakeholder groups to engage with.” (Taken from the 
Applicant’s Statement of Community Involvement). 

 
Key Outcomes  

7.4 The SCI includes the Applicants’ response to various objections raised by local 
residents. The Applicants agree to various elements of mitigation, including a 
construction management plan, a landscape strategy for the green open space and 
pedestrian connectivity measures. 

 
8.0 POLICY CONSIDERATION 
 
8.1 The following policy is relevant to the consideration of this application: 
 

National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021 
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations 
and Development Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) 
the Bristol Central Area Plan (Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old 
Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston 
Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 and the Hengrove and Whitchurch Park 
Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019. 

 
8.2 In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all 

relevant policies of the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance. 
 

Emerging Policy and Legislation  

Page 32



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
 
8.3 The consultation on the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill seeks view on the 

proposed approach to preparing National Development Management Policies and how 
policy might be developed to support levelling up. This feeds directly into the proposed 
changes to the NPPF (see below). At the time of writing, the Bill is progressing 
committee stage in the House of Lords. The Bill seeks to make the planning system 
work better for communities including introducing a requirement for local authorities to 
produce design codes, introducing a new infrastructure levy, giving increased weight 
to neighbourhood plans, reforming the 5-year housing land supply by removing the 
requirement for 5%, 10% and 20% buffers, and making changes to the Housing 
Delivery Test.  

 
8.4 On 22 December 2022 the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 

published its proposed approach to updating the NPPF for consultation. The 
consultation ran until 2 March 2023. The main proposed changes relate to the 
weakening of the presumption in favour of sustainable development, with reduced 
support for high density development; strengthening neighbourhood plans; the 
potential removal of the requirement for robust testing of objectively assessed need, 
and potential strengthening of green belt boundaries.  

 
8.5 Bristol City Council published the latest draft Local Plan policies for consultation in 

November 2022. This states that these allocations will be removed and retained as 
open space with nature conservation interest.  

 
8.6 Draft Policy H1 sets an annual average minimum housing target of 1,925 net additional 

dwellings, which falls drastically below housing need derived by the Standard Method 
figure plus 35% uplift of 3,376, without any strategy in place for unmet need to be 
addressed outside of BCC’s boundaries. 

 
9.0 RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION 
 

Representations received 
 
9.1 There have been 649 objections received to this application. The vast majority 

express concern about the impact of housing on the ecology of the site. 
 
9.2 The representations received objecting to the application can be summarised as 

follows: 
 

Principle of development (Key Issue A) 
 

- This site is not needed for housing as there  are a huge number of other 
developments nearby including a vast array of rented accommodation. 

- The housing that will be built will be unaffordable. 
 

Transport (Key Issue B) 
 

- Concern about the impact on the local transport network 
 

Ecology (Key Issue C) 
 

- There are protected species on the site. 
- There would be destruction of 700 trees. 
- “How can this be justified in terms of climate change?” 
- Wildlife on the site should be protected. 

Page 33



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

- Concern about destroying countryside. We need more trees to combat climate 
change. 

- Green spaces should be preserved. 
- The Slopes are an important part of Bristol’s ecological diversity.  

 
9.3 There have been 5 representations received in support for the application:  
 

- More housing is needed 
- A dedicated footway is needed for Novers Hill 
- The area needs a play area. 

 
External Contributions 

 
Avon Fire and Rescue 

 
9.4 The additional residential and commercial developments will require additional 

hydrants to be installed and appropriately-sized water mains to be provided for fire-
fighting purposes. This additional infrastructure is required as a direct result of the 
developments and so the costs will need to be borne by developer. 

 
Internal Contributions (All comments relate to the original proposal. No further 
comments have been received) 

 
BCC Transport Development Management (TDM) 

 
9.5 Comments incorporated into the Key Issues Section below. 
 

 BCC Nature Conservation Officer 
 
9.6 Comments incorporated into the Key Issues Section below. 
 

BCC Pollution Control 
 
9.7 Would require more detailed information to assess the impact of the proposal. 

Conditions relating to construction management would be required in the event that a 
recommendation to approve were recommended.   

 
BCC City Design Group (Comments received in November 2011) 

 
9.8 Raised an objection to the application: 
 

“The main concern with the proposal relates to its overly engineered approach to 
integrating housing with the site’ highly visible steeply sloping landform.” 

 
BCC Housing Delivery Team 

 
9.9 Raise no objection: 
 

“The affordable housing proposal for the application is policy compliant in terms of 
the number of affordable units and the proposed tenure split and the size mix is 
acceptable. Clarification is needed on the number of one and two bed flats and the 
sizes and on the specification of the ground floor maisonette unit (plot 27) and 
whether it is suitable for M4(3) standard. We continue to have concerns about the 
grouping together of the affordable rented and shared ownership flats in one corner 

Page 34



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

of the scheme and would prefer to see these more evenly distributed in the interests 
of tenure blindness and integration.” 

 
BCC Archaeologist  

 
9.10 In the event that this application is recommended for approval, a standard pre-

commencement condition requiring a programme of archaeological work is 
undertaken. A pre-occupation condition requiring that this programme is completed is 
also recommended. 

 
BCC Tree Officer 

 
Trees 

 
9.11 The Council’s Aboricultural Officer comments that: 
 

“I have no major objection to the proposed; the supporting arboricultural 
documentation is reasonable to support the application and can be conditioned with 
your decision notice if you are minded to consent the proposed.  

 
However the following concerns relating to the current proposal are highlighted:  

 
1. Due to the topography of the site there is an inevitable need to reprofile land 
portion of the site to create developable areas. The southern area of housing is 
proposed adjacent to groups 5 & 9 and will require the partial removal of both groups. 
What level of engineering works are required in close proximity to the retained 
portions of these groups and how will these works be undertaken to ensure no further 
loss of tree from G5 & 9 will occur. I recognise tree protection fencing has been 
located in these areas, however, engineering works on steep gradients often overspill 
and I would like re-assurance that this will not be the case.  

 
2. The landscape plan does provide tree lined street outside of a majority of the 
proposed dwellings. This is a requirement of para 131 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. Tree lined streets provide a number of social, environmental & economic 
benefits which are well documented. An increase is street trees would be a positive 
improvement to the long term landscape value of the site. If this cannot be achieve 
we would require a compelling reason why not. Once the additional information has 
been provided regarding any proposed engineering works adjacent to Group 5 & 9 
and a rational regarding further tree planting outside of properties to provide tree 
lined streets I can provide you with condition if you are minded to consent the 
application. 

 
Hedgerows 

 
9.12 The hedgerows surrounding and within the proposed development site do appear to 

be in existence in 1840 (1840’s Tithe & 1844-1888 OS25” 1st Edition maps – Know 
your Place, Bristol) There is some movement in the location of Novers Hill between 
the mapping systems but this is slight.  Earlier maps do not cover this area. This 
would suggest the field structure was in place before the Enclosures Act period.  

 
9.13 The hedgerows have not been pro-actively managed for a significant period and 

have therefore become neglected reducing the species diversity due to the 
encroachment of blackthorn sucker growth. The dominant species within a majority of 
the hedgerow along Novers Hill is Blackthorn in the main. Gaps have begun to form 

Page 35



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

and trees such as ash, elm, hazel, and elder are scares where they would have once 
grown well evident by the small numbers remaining within the hedgerow.  

 
9.14 There is limited evidence of age succession within the hedge other than Ash where 

mature trees and young trees are present.   
 
9.15 Species diversity is poor with Blackthorn being the dominant species, some sections 

of the hedgerow have 5 native species within a 30m length, however, the distribution 
is low and of poor quality. There is little evidence of historic hedgerow management 
from laying; more commonly it appears the hedge has been managed with a flail 
creating a spares understory (A ground flora assessment has not been undertaken 
due to the time of year; this should be conduct from spring onwards to capture the 
species present). During my site visit I have taken photographic evidence of a 
number of sections on Novers Hill Only. 

 
9.16 The hedgerow adjacent to Novers Hill would be considered a neglected ancient 

hedgerow, that has been in existence prior to the Enclosures Act period.  
 
9.17 A full assessment by an ecologist should be undertaken to provide a detailed 

assessment and how this would influence the current planning application.  
 

BCC Sustainable Cities Team 
 
9.18 The Council’s Sustainable Cities Team have made the following comments: 

Fabric: The improvement in fabric efficiency and air permeability, over minimum 
values set by the Building Regulations is supported.  

Heating and hot water: The proposal to use an air source heat pump (ASHP) to 
provide space heating and hot water in each unit is supported. Further detail of pump 
specification will be required.   

An energy calculation to show compliance with Policy BCS14 should be provided. 

PV: Even if PV is not required to meet BCC sustainability policies the applicant is 
strongly encouraged to provide PV as part of the standard specification, to reduce 
residual energy demand. PV will also work well in combination with ASHP’s helping 
to reduce energy running costs.   

Broadband: Further information is required to show how the scheme will satisfy the 
requirements for Broadband connectivity under BCS15 as set out in the Broadband 
Connectivity Practice Note (2018). 

EV charging provision: Details of EV charging provision should be set out in the 
Energy Statement or a link provided if addressed in other submissions.  

Given that the sale of new petrol and diesel vehicles will end in 2030, and the rapid 
increase in the uptake of EV’s, the applicant is strongly encouraged to meet 
emerging policy on EV charging and provide a minimum of one charge point per 
dwelling with contingency for a charge point to be added in the remaining parking 
spaces as demand increases.  

Page 36



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

Charge points should have a minimum output of 7kW and comply with the Electric 
Vehicles (Smart Charge Points) Regulations 2021  

Details of EV charging provision including the location of charge points should be 
provided on drawings.  

Resilience to overheating: Further assurance that the scheme will not be liable to 
overheating during the design-life of the development, assumed to be 60 years, 
should be provided. 

BREEAM Communities: Having reviewed the BREEAM Report provided by KSD 
Sustainability Consultants (Sept 2021) my recommendation is that a ‘self-certified’ 
assessment be provided. 

9.19 Officer Note: These matters would all be secured by condition in the event that 
Members were minded to approve.  

 
BCC Drainage Officer 

 
9.20 The Council’s Drainage Officer comments that they would require additional 

information to confirm that the Drainage Strategy for the site is satisfactory. This 
would relate to: 

 
1. Confirmation of adoption of surface water system by Wessex Water. 
2. Confirmation of how the drainage strategy would work. 
3. The proposals are based on an end of pipe SuDS solution. Source control and 

other upstream measures should also be incorporated, which should help reduce 
the volume of water to be stored  

4. Additional commentary on the land drain that is proposed.  
 
9.21 Officer Note: These matters would all be secured by condition in the event that 

Members were minded to approve.  
 
10.0 KEY ISSUES 
 
10.1 The following issues are key to the determination of this outline application: 
 

- Is the proposed development acceptable in principle? 
- Can a safe highway solution be found? 
- Is the proposal acceptable in terms of impact on ecology? 

 
 

(A) IS THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE IN PRINCIPLE?  
 
10.2 Core Strategy Policy BCS1 identifies South Bristol as a priority focus for  

development and comprehensive regeneration. This includes: 
 

- Around 60,000m² of net additional office floorspace focused on centres and the 
major regeneration areas. 

 
- Up to 10 hectares of new industrial and warehousing land focused on the 
major regeneration areas. 

 

Page 37



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

-The provision of around 8,000 new homes of a mix of type, size and tenure. 
 
Core Strategy Policy BCS1 is clear that development in South Bristol will primarily 
occur on previously developed land. 

 
10.2 Core Strategy Policy BCS5 establishes that the aim is to deliver new homes within 

Bristol's existing built-up areas. Between 2006 and 2026, the policy states that 
30,600 new homes will be provided in Bristol. It is noted that by March 2022, 28,821 
homes had been completed.  

 
10.3 Core Strategy Policy BCS18 states that all new residential development should 

maintain, provide or contribute to a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes to help 
support the creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities.  

 
10.4 The application site is allocated for housing in the Development Plan. Allocation 

BSA1108 includes the land at Novers Hill, land east of Hartcliffe Way and the 
application site. It has an overall area of 10.6 hectares and has an estimated capacity 
of 440 homes. Allocation BSA1114 includes land at Novers Hill, adjacent to the 
industrial units. It has an area of 2.2 hectares and has an estimated capacity of 50 
homes. 

 
10.5 It is recognised that there is a significant need for new housing developments in 

Bristol, a need which this application would help to address. As the Council cannot 
demonstrates a five year supply of deliverable housing sites and has failed the recent 
Housing Delivery Test, paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF is engaged. 

 
10.6 The NPPF requires each authority to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable 

housing sites plus five per cent land supply buffer. The Council cannot currently do 
so. The Council identified a housing land supply of 2.45 years for the purposes of a 
recent Appeal at Brislington Meadows and has failed its most recent Housing 
Delivery Test. 

 
10.7 Since the LPA is unable to demonstrate a five-year housing land supply, paragraph 

11(d) of the NPPF is engaged, and the tilted balance applies meaning the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in paragraph 11(d) of 
the NPPF is applicable. This states: 

 
- Plans and decisions should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable 

development.  
 
For decision-taking this means: 

 
(c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development 
plan without delay; or 

(d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are 
most important for determining the application are out-of-date (8), granting 
permission unless: 

(i) the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed 
(7) ; or 

(ii) any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

Page 38



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

The relevant elements of paragraph 11 which have particular relevance are 
underlined.  

Footnote (8) categorizes polices as being out of date where the local planning 
authority cannot demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the 
appropriate buffer, as set out in paragraph 74); or where the Housing Delivery Test 
indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the 
housing requirement over the previous 3 years.  

The Council’s relevant policies are regarded as out of date in this context. 

10.8 Key to the determination of this application is whether Officers would be justified in 
recommending refusal for this application based on transport concerns, despite not 
having a five-year housing supply. It is the assessment of your Officers that such a 
recommendation would be justified. 

10.9 The NPPF, Paragraph 11 and specifically 11(d)(ii) includes a presumption in favour 
of sustainable development. In applying Footnote (8), that the policies which are 
most important are out of date, and so permission should be granted unless any 
adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

10.10 This wording suggests that the policy evaluation which is to be carried out is limited 
to policies within the NPPF, i.e. when assessed against the policies in this 
Framework, which in turn would imply that policies within the development plan 
should be disregarded. However, such an approach would not be correct, and there 
is extensive case law which supports the view that when considering planning 
applications, it is necessary to consider the proposal in terms of development plan 
policy as well (and that in fact it would be unlawful to fail to do so). 

10.11 Arguably the leading case on this point is Gladman Developments Limited v 
SSHCLG and another [2020], in which Gladman argued (unsuccessfully) that only 
policies within the NPPF could be taken into account. The judgement in this case 
effectively concluded (in the context of the NPPF as issued in 2019) as follows: 

• The tilted balance was to be regarded as a material planning consideration in the 
determination of the application 

• However, Section 38(6) PCPA 2004 is not set aside by the NPPF, and so there is 
still an obligation on the LPA to have regard to the development plan and to 
determine the application in accordance with the plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise 

• Where development plan polices are out of date, the correct decision making 
approach is to consider (a) development plan policy and (b) the tilted balance 
arising form the lack of a 5YHLS at the same time, and it is still necessary for the 
decision maker to assess the weight to be attributed to (a) and (b) 

• The NPPF does not exclude development plan policies from the tilted balance: 
such policies are to be taken into account 

 

10.12 Therefore having decided the weight is to be attributed to development plan policy as 
well as the tilted balance and other material considerations, the conclusion has been 
reached that the objection from Transport Development Management  identifies 
issues which are “adverse impacts” within the terms of paragraph 11 of the NPPF, 
and to consider relevant development plan policies in the process. 

Page 39

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fguidance%2Fnational-planning-policy-framework%2F5-delivering-a-sufficient-supply-of-homes%23para074&data=05%7C01%7C%7C3dffe16cab624361e44e08db7d30af9e%7C6378a7a50f214482aee0897eb7de331f%7C0%7C0%7C638241420299287245%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PbtYjLI%2F7WM%2F8RCvIpC%2B3NecyJcfuwVZ%2FkEgQSJANqk%3D&reserved=0


Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
 

(B) IS THE ACCESS TO THE DEVELOPMENT ACCEPTABLE? 
 
10.13 Core Strategy Policy BCS10 states that developments should be designed and 

located to ensure the provision of safe streets. Development should create places 
and streets where traffic and other activities are integrated and where buildings, 
spaces and the needs of people shape the area. 

 
10.14 Policy DM23 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies outlines 

that development should not give rise to unacceptable traffic conditions and will be 
expected to provide safe and adequate access onto the highway network. With 
regard to parking, Policy DM23 states that this must be safe, secure, accessible and 
usable. 

 
10.15 The Council’s Transport Development Management (TDM) have reviewed the 

application and raise an objection on multiple grounds. 
 

Poor Permeability 
 
10.16 TDM object to the proposed layout due to its poor permeability and lack of safe and 

adequate access to and within the development, which, to be overcome, would 
require substantial redesign of the site and evidence of deliverability of proposed 
future links to key transport corridors. 

 
10.17 This has not been addressed with the amended proposals for the site. New links 

within the site have been identified, but there is no evidence that any of these can be 
achieved, nor have the applicants sought to contribute nor secure any such links. As 
they stand, these are merely stubs of footway leading to nowhere, and are 
unreflective of the terrain in the site. There is no certainty that these routes can be 
delivered in any short or long term, and as such these links are not considered to 
provide any permeability of the site in either the short or long term. 

 
10.18 Furthermore, there is no detail of how these may physically link into surrounding sites 

as no gradients have been supplied to indicate that these can be achieved on a 
suitable level.  

 
Insufficient traffic calming and visibility splays 

 
10.19 TDM object to the application on the basis that the proposed traffic calming is 

insufficient, visibility splays inadequate, and the proposals do not provide a 
sufficiently safe walking and cycling environment. 

 
10.20 This has not been addressed with the amendments to the scheme. The applicants 

have not satisfactorily addressed the issues outlined in the substantial comments 
sent by TDM and in the subsequent Road Safety Audit review. TDM continue to have 
a strong objection on the grounds of road safety. 

 

 

Shared use cycle and walking link 

10.21 TDM object to the proposed internal shared use cycle and walking link due to its 
insufficient width, surveillance, accessibility and safety. 

 

Page 40



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
10.22 This has not been adequately addressed in the amendments to the scheme 

submitted by the Applicants. An alternative route into the site has been provided to 
the west of the houses, which is stated to provide an alternative facility. 

 
Link to neighbouring sites 

 
10.23 A link has been indicated in the neighbouring south site, but the levels are 

inaccessible and no details of how any future link could be physically provided into 
the neighbouring site are available. The indicative gradients in this location are 
prohibitive to any safe route through. 

 
10.24 In the absence of any feasible link into the neighbouring site this shared use path 

would only serve the residents of the development, and not address the safety for 
any other existing pedestrians and cyclists who would be affected by the additional 
traffic arising from the development, who would be dependent on a safe route 
alternative to the live carriageway in Novers Hill. 

 
10.25 The northernmost section of the cycle route has not been addressed and this is the 

steepest section of the route, and the concerns about safety and conflict between 
fast moving cyclists and pedestrians in this shared surface have not been addressed. 

 
Public Transport Infrastructure 

 
10.26 TDM object to the proposals as they fail to provide for links to and appropriate 

improvements to public transport infrastructure. 
 
10.27 This has not been addressed in the resubmission. As point above, safe and direct 

access is not provided to local public transport routes. 
 

Internal Layout 

10.28 TDM object to the internal layout on the basis that the gradients are inaccessible and 
not conducive to walking or cycling, footway widths are inadequate and visibility and 
turning has not been sufficiently demonstrated. 

 
10.29 Forward visibility has been clarified and addressed. 
 
10.30 Gradients are still excessive for safe walking, cycling and wheeling and would make 

the development dependent on car use and make it inaccessible and inequitable for 
those who have no access to a car. This is particularly pertinent for the affordable 
housing, which is at the lowest part of the site. 

 
10.31 It is expected that the highway would be to an adoptable standard, including ensuring 

that the gradients are acceptable and the highway is structurally sound. To achieve 
this, the highway must be constructed to suitable engineering standard. This will 
involve a significant amount of cut, full and structural works. No AIP has been 
submitted and / or agreed. In the absence of this information TDM are not fully 
satisfied that the development can be delivered safely. 

 
10.32 The substantial earthworks involved is likely to have a considerable impact on the 

structural integrity of the surrounding environment. 
 
10.33 There are still areas to the south of the site with inadequate footway widths. 
 

Page 41



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

Over provision of allocated parking 

10.34 TDM object to the overprovision of allocated parking which exceeds Local Plan 
maximum standards. 

 
10.35 TDM object to the proposals as the cycle parking provision is inadequate in its 

current form. 
 
10.36 There are many parts of the application site where cycle stores are inaccessible. 
 

Waste storage and collection facilities 

10.37 TDM objects to the current waste storage and collection facilities as these are not fit 
for purpose. 

 
10.38 There are many parts of the site where refuse stores are inaccessible, resulting in 

obstruction of the footway if not put away properly. 
 
10.39 No clear Construction Management Plan has been submitted and there is road safety 

implication of queueing on Novers Hill by construction vehicles. The construction of 
the site will have significant environmental and traffic management matters needing 
to be addressed prior to commencement. This would need to be addressed as this 
would raise serious road safety concerns. 

 
10.40 Furthermore, TDM are concerned about the impact that this development will have 

on the structural integrity of this land, and the impact that any failure or excessive 
terracing / structural works will have on the natural environment. 

 
10.41 TDM has concerns over the cut and fill, and the safety aspects of such retaining 

structures, which not only require significant earthworks and retaining features, but 
they also require safety barriers as indicated on the plans. 

 
10.42 TDM would therefore advise that the construction of the highway and the retaining 

features necessary from the very commencement of the scheme (including the very 
start of construction) is likely to have a significant impact on the stability of the 
ground, given the site’s topography. There has been no evidence that this can be 
undertaken satisfactorily, contrary to Policy DM37. It would take a considerable 
amount of pre-commencement information to satisfy any condition and it could be 
considered unreasonable to apply a condition that may not be able to be satisfied. 

 
10.43 In summary, the cumulative impact of the road safety and severity of the gradients in 

this area mean that this application cannot be supported. Accordingly highway 
related reasons for refusal are recommended. 

 

 

(C) IS THE PROPOSAL ACCEPTABLE IN TERMS OF ITS IMPACT ON 
ECOLOGY? 

 

Use of land outside of the site allocation boundaries (SNCI land) for green 
corridor and access 

10.44 The applicant is proposing to use land outside of the site allocation boundaries (SNCI 
land) for a green corridor.  

Page 42



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
10.45 Inclusion of the SNCI land within the red-line boundary triggers policy DM19 which 

states: “Development which would have a harmful impact on the nature conservation 
value of a Site of Nature Conservation Interest will not be permitted”.  

10.46 It has not been demonstrated that the use of this land (SNCI) outside of the site 
allocation boundaries will not have a harmful impact on the SNCI, as habitat is being 
lost and areas of hardstanding ‘Local Play Space’ and part of one of the access 
roads is being proposed in it.  

10.47 The application is therefore not policy compliant with DM19. The only activities which 
would be compliant are those that would not have a harmful impact, such as 
enhancement.  

10.48 The Council’s Ecologist comments that ‘Local Play Space’, green infrastructure and 
access points for the residents of any development within the site allocations should 
be provided within the site allocation boundaries only, and the SNCI should be 
protected from habitat degradation and enhanced only. 

Previous Nature Conservation Officer comments, BNG, and the SNCI 

10.49 The Council’s Nature Conservation Officers (NCO) have spent considerable time 
assessing the impact of the application proposal on the ecology of the site.  

10.50 The previous NCO commented:  

“My advice is that a re-evaluation of the grassland habitats would be useful now that 
grazing has (allegedly) ceased. This type of (Phase 2) survey would need to be 
carried out by a botanist at an appropriate time of year. Basically, it is an NVC survey 
that needs to be carried out.”  

10.51 It is unclear at this stage whether this work has been done and your Officers will 
update Members at the Committee Meeting.  

10.52 Complete ecological surveys are therefore not complete which is a material planning 
consideration as not compliant with Policy DM19. See section in bold below. 

10.53 DM19 Development and Nature Conservation states that development which would 
be likely to have any impact upon habitat, species or features, which contribute to 
nature conservation in Bristol will be expected to:  

 i. Be informed by an appropriate survey and assessment of impacts 

The previous NCO commented: It is not clear why the existing badger sett cannot be 
retained in situ. A reasoned justification for relocating the sett needs to be provided 
by the applicant. Since which, a justification has not been received however the 
applicants’ documents state that Japanese Knotweed (JK) is present in same area as 
badger sett. JK must be removed. A JK Removal Strategy would be required. This 
could be secured by condition.  

There is also a need for the LPA to agree that the badger sett must be relocated.  

10.54 The previous NCO commented: The applicant also needs to provide a reasoned 
justification for the loss of woodland, which is a Habitat of Principal Importance.  

10.55 This has not been received. The quantum of loss of woodland seems unnecessarily 
high and unjustified. As a Habitat of Principal Importance this would require robust 
justification. Some of this woodland is in the ‘Pigeonhouse Stream and adjacent 

Page 43



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

meadows’ Site of Nature Conservation Interest (outside of the site allocation 
boundaries).  

10.56 Any harmful impact on a SNCI, such as the habitat loss proposed here, is not 
compliant with Policy DM19 and the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) 
(NPPF).  

Sites of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI) 

10.57 Policy DM19 states that development which would have a harmful impact on the 
nature conservation value of a SNCI will not be permitted.   

10.58 NPPF 2021 paras 174 states: 

174. Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment by: 

(a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological 
value and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified 
quality in the development plan); 

(d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by 
establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future 
pressures; 

 

10.59 NPPF 2021 paras 179 states: 

179. To protect and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity, plans should: 

(a) Identify, map and safeguard components of local wildlife-rich habitats and wider 
ecological networks, including the hierarchy of international, national and locally 
designated sites of importance for biodiversity 61 ; wildlife corridors and stepping 
stones that connect them; and areas identified by national and local partnerships for 
habitat management, enhancement, restoration or creation 62 ; and 

(b) promote the conservation, restoration and enhancement of priority habitats, 
ecological networks and the protection and recovery of priority species; and identify 
and pursue opportunities for securing measurable net gains for biodiversity. 

10.60 The Council’s Ecologist has commented that no bat roost assessment of any of the 
trees in this woodland has been carried out. No commentary was provided in the 
Ecological Impact Assessment on bat roost suitability of any of the trees on site. This 
information is required before a full assessment of the site can be undertaken as the 
location of any potential bat roosts in the woodland would impact design, mitigation 
requirements, and the developments impact on a European protected species. This 
is material planning consideration as it is not compliant with policy DM19 and the 
NPPF 2021.  

10.61 Policy DM19 Development and Nature Conservation states that development which 
would be likely to have any impact upon habitat, species or features, which contribute 
to nature conservation in Bristol will be expected to be informed by an appropriate 
survey and assessment of impacts. 

10.62 Earlier Ecologist comments stated:  

Page 44

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/15-conserving-and-enhancing-the-natural-environment#footnote61
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework/15-conserving-and-enhancing-the-natural-environment#footnote62


Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

“… the viability of securing off site biodiversity units needs to be reviewed. I am 
aware that no agreement has been reached about using Crox Bottom SNCI for this 
purpose or for securing such gains via planning obligations at this or any other site. 
And I would advise that the application should not be determined until more certainty 
is offered.” 

10.63 The Applicant has stated that “our proposal is to use a biodiversity offset habitat bank 
in nearby Nailsea to deliver the offsetting required for the proposed development. At 
the current time, no other options exist for the delivery of a net gain for biodiversity” 
and “Bristol City Council will need to advise the applicant what information they 
require about the offset project to ensure that a net gain for biodiversity is deliverable. 
A management and monitoring plan, plus a net gain assessment have been carried 
out for the site, and these can be made available on request”. 

10.64 It is unusual for an applicant not to provide a Biodiversity Net Gain plan to their LPA 
up front if they have one. What we would be looking for in a BNG plan is evidence of 
how the mitigation hierarchy has been applied, how net gains are going to be 
achieved, specifically  details of the offset habitat bank in Nailsea, how many 
biodiversity units are being procured, and proof that the trading rules are being met. 
Without this currently we can’t be certain that the application is compliant with the 
2021 NPPF. This is a material planning consideration. 

10.65 Without the aforementioned information, the application does not demonstrate 
compliance with one of the development considerations (for both allocations), which 
states: 

“be informed by an ecological survey of the site and make provision for 
compensation and mitigation measures, including compensation for the loss of the 
‘Lowland Meadow’, ‘Lowland Calcareous Grassland’ and semi-improved neutral 
grassland. The site currently has city-wide importance for nature conservation due to 
the presence and condition of particular species, habitats and / or features;”.  

This is a material planning consideration. 

Land Instability 

10.66 The Council’s Ecologist is concerned about the impact of the proposed earthworks 
that would be required to deliver development on the site.  

10.67 NPPF 2021 para 174 states: 

174. Planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment by:  

(e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, 
air, water or noise pollution or land instability.  

10.68 The long-term viability of the site is a key component to securing and protecting the 
biodiversity on it. If a suitable engineering solution has not been agreed yet, then it 
cannot be confirmed that there won’t be further adverse impact on ecology and 
natural habitats.  

Biodiversity Net Gain 

Page 45



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
10.69 In response to the previous NCO’s comments on the BNG assessment, the applicant 

stated: “Strategic significance will be high if the location of the habitat is identified in a 
local plan, strategy or policy related to biodiversity. Medium strategic significance can 
be used where a location is deemed ecologically desirable for that particular habitat 
type.”  

10.70 The applicant should therefore have used the Bristol Local Plan in their search for 
published plans and strategies for biodiversity. The Bristol Local Plan specifically 
states the following regarding SNCIs: “Although they do not receive the same legal 
protection as international or national nature conservation sites, Sites of Nature 
Conservation Interest (SNCIs) collectively represent the city’s critical stock of natural 
capacity. In some areas of Bristol, SNCIs offer people their only valuable contact with 
wildlife. Therefore, development proposals which would harm the nature 
conservation value of an SNCI will not be permitted.  

10.71 The ‘Bristol Nature Conservation Map’ displays the location of SNCIs within Bristol 
and also gives an overview of habitats and species on each SNCI. This, along with 
more 2.0 Development Management Policies 43 Bristol Local Plan – Site Allocations 
and Development Management Policies – Adopted July 2014 detailed information 
from the appropriate survey and assessment, should inform any development 
proposal which may impact upon an SNCI to ensure harm is avoided.  

10.72 For land to be given SNCI status strict criteria have to be met. These criteria 
establish the site as having substantive value for nature conservation due to the 
presence and condition of particular species, habitats and features.” 

10.73 All habitats within the ‘Pigeonhouse Stream and adjacent meadows’ SNCI (outside of 
the site allocation boundaries) should therefore have been assigned high strategic 
significance in the BNG assessment. All other habitats should have been assigned 
medium strategic significance because they are contained in the former SNCI 
designation. 

10.74 Site allocation development considerations could be met and the NPPF and Bristol 
DM policies could be complied with, with a greater focus on achieving BNG on site 
within the boundaries of the site allocations. The existing ‘Pigeonhouse Stream and 
adjacent meadows’ SNCI should remain unimpacted by development. Where BNG 
on site is genuinely not feasible and this is evidenced, off-site BNG as close to the 
application site as possible should be the next step and trading rules must be met. 

10.75 Notwithstanding all these outstanding issues, your Officer’s are mindful of the 
parallels with the recent Brislington Meadows Appeal outcome. There the Inspector 
placed limited weight on the loss of trees and hedgerows and ecology because of the 
site allocation (Appeal Reference APP/Z0116/W/22/3308537, Inspector’s decision 
dated 17th April 2023 , paragraph 149). It is concluded therefore that while there is 
the need to undertake additional work in respect of mitigating the impact of housing 
on this site, ecological concern cannot be supported as an in principle objection to 
this application proposal. Rather, the reasons for refusal recommended will ensure 
the delivery of the required mitigation.  

11.0 CONCLUSION 

11.1 Attention must be paid to the need to deliver more housing to address the significant 
housing need in the city.  This site is allocated for housing and the city is without a 
five year housing supply. The Local Planning Authority should therefore be in a 

Page 46



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 

position to support this application proposal and recommend that permission is 
granted. However, it is the assessment of your Officers that the objection of 
Transport Officers (TDM) amounts to a significant material consideration that 
outweighs the allocation of this site for housing.  

11.2 The cumulative impact of the road safety and severity of the gradients in this area 
mean that this application cannot be supported. An acceptable highway solution has 
not been found. 

11.3 In respect of ecology, it is noted that a significant number of objections have been 
received expressing concern about the impact of the proposal on the ecology of the 
site. There is a need to undertake additional work in respect of mitigating the impact 
of housing on this site. There is no reason to suggest that this could not be done. As 
a consequence, ecological concern cannot be supported as an in principle objection 
to this application proposal.  

11.4 Overall, this application is recommended for refusal. 

 
 

RECOMMENDED REFUSED 
The following reason(s) for refusal are associated with this decision: 

 

Reason(s) 

 1. The proposed development fails to provide the following: 

  

 - Adequate permeability within and to / from highway network 

 - Sufficient road safety measures  

 - Walking and cycling infrastructure 

 - Public Transport infrastructure 

 - Travel Planning provision  

 - Adequate waste storage and collection proposals 

 - An acceptable level of parking (by reason of overprovision) 

  

 It is therefore contrary to the requirements of the NPPF, policies BCS10, BCS13, 
BCS21 of the Bristol Core Strategy (2011) and policies DM23, DM27, DM28 of the 
Bristol Local Plan, Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (2014) and 
the Knowle West Regeneration Framework. 

 

 2. The proposed development by reason of the internal gradients would not allow easy 
or safe walking and cycling. This is contrary to the requirements of the NPPF, policies 
BCS10, BCS13 of the Bristol Core Strategy (2011) and policies DM23, DM28 of the 
Bristol Local Plan, Site Allocations and Development Management Policies (2014). 

Page 47



Item no. 1 
Development Control  – 19 July 2023 
Application No. 21/05164/F : Land On The West Side Of Novers Hill Bristol   
 
 

 3. The application proposal is not supported by a complete set of ecological surveys and 
reports to demonstrate mitigation on the ecology of the site and its biodiversity. The 
application proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of the NPPF and to 
Policy DM19 of the Bristol Local Plan, Site Allocations and Development Management 
Policies (2014). 

 

 

 

Page 48



Supporting Documents 
 

 
Land on The West side of Novers Hill 
 

1. Application Site 
2. Site Location Plan 
3. Existing Site Plan 
4. Proposed Site Layout 
5. Access 
6. Ecology 
7. Overview 
8. Transport Development Management Comments 

Page 49



Land on the west side of 
Novers Hill

Erection of 157 no. dwellings, including 47 no. affordable housing 
units (30%), along with 2 no. access points from Novers Hill, the 
provision of play facilities and public open space with associated 

works.

P
age 50



Application site
• Site Area: 5.30 Hectares
• Allocated for Housing in the Adopted Local Plan
• 101 Open Market Homes
• 43 Affordable Homes
• Access to the site from Novers Hill

P
age 51



Site Location Plan

P
age 52



Existing Site Plan

P
age 53



Proposed Site Layout

P
age 54



Access
• There is unacceptable internal gradients rendering the site inaccessible and not 

allowing easy or safe walking and cycling - DM23, DM28, BCS10, BCS13, NPPF.
• Inadequate permeability within and to / from highway network - DM23, DM27, 

DM28, BCS10, BCS13, BCS21, NPPF, Knowle West Regeneration Framework
• Inadequate measures to mitigate impacts of development and provide for 

sustainable travel patterns to and within the site, with insufficient provision of road 
safety measures, walking and cycling infrastructure, public transport 
infrastructure and travel planning provision - DM23, BCS10, BCS11, BCS13 and 
the NPPF.

• Inadequate cycle parking and overprovision of car parking - DM23, BCS10, 
BCS13 and the  NPPF

• Inadequate waste storage and collection proposals - DM23, DM32, BCS15

P
age 55



Ecology
• It has not been demonstrated that the use of this land (SNCI) outside of the site allocation boundaries will not 

have a harmful impact on the SNCI, as habitat is being lost and areas of hardstanding ‘Local Play Space’ and 
part of one of the access roads is being proposed in it. The application is therefore not policy compliant with 
DM19. 

• A re-evaluation of the grassland habitats would be useful now that grazing has (allegedly) ceased. This type of 
(Phase 2) survey would need to be carried out by a botanist at an appropriate time of year. Basically, it is an 
NVC survey that needs to be carried out.

• It is not clear why the existing badger sett cannot be retained in situ. A reasoned justification for relocating the 
sett needs to be provided by the applicant. 

• The applicant also needs to provide a reasoned justification for the loss of woodland, which is a Habitat of 
Principal Importance. 

• No bat roost assessment of any of the trees in this woodland has been carried out
• There is a need for a greater focus on achieving BNG on site. 
• Site allocation development considerations could be met and the NPPF and Bristol DM policies could be 

complied with, with a greater focus on achieving BNG on site within the boundaries of the site 
allocations. The existing ‘Pigeonhouse Stream and adjacent meadows’ SNCI should remain unimpacted 
by development. Where BNG on site is genuinely not feasible and this is evidenced, off-site BNG as 
close to the application site as possible should be the next step and trading rules must be met.

P
age 56



Overview
• 649 objections received on ecological impact
• Recommendation to refuse on highway grounds                                                                                                 

P
age 57



 

File Name: S:\TRAFFIC\TranPlan\City Transport\02 DEV MAN\01 PLANNING\2021\21.05164.F Novers 
Hill\01 CORRESPONDENCE\01 FORMAL COMMENTS\21.05146.F FINAL.docx 

City Transport 
Transport Development Management 
Application Response 
 

 
To:  Peter Westbury, Development Management Planning Team 
From:  Pip Howson, Transport Development Management  
Date:  22 June 2023 
Address:  Land at Novers Hill  
Application No:  23/05164/F 
Proposal:  157 dwellings  
Response:  Final Response 
Recommendation: Objection 
 
 
I refer to previous correspondence dated 11 April 2022, 22 August 2022 and 20 April 2023.   
  
The following table summarises TDM's position and provides an update following a resubmission of plans 
dated 1 March 2023, including the following alterations relevant to TDM: 

 Introduction of pedestrian link within the site to improve permeability between lower and higher 
roads on the southern parcel.  

 Introduction of shared use cycle path within southern parcel road layout to provide alternative 
cycle route.  

 Reconfigure layout to safeguard possibility for pedestrian/bicycle/maintenance access to land to 
south, instead of adoptable road access.  

 Amended vehicle and cycle parking provision.  
 Various associated alterations to road layout, alignment and levels. 

 
It is TDM’s position that these have not satisfactorily addressed the concerns raised, and TDM continue to 
object to the proposals.  

 

  Objection Commentary 

1 TDM object to the proposed layout 
due to its poor permeability and 
lack of safe and adequate access to 
and within the development, which, 
to be overcome, would require 
substantial redesign of the site and 
evidence of deliverability of 
proposed future links to key 
transport corridors.   

This has not been addressed in the resubmission.  New 
links within the site have been identified, but there is 
no evidence that any of these can be achieved, nor 
have the applicants sought to contribute nor secure 
any such links.  As they stand, these are merely stubs of 
footway leading to nowhere, and are unreflective of 
the terrain in the site.  There is no certainty that these 
routes can be delivered in any short or long term, and 
as such these links are not considered to provide any 
permeability of the site in either the short or long-
term.  Furthermore, there is no detail of how these 
may physically link into surrounding sites as no 

Page 58



 

File Name: S:\TRAFFIC\TranPlan\City Transport\02 DEV MAN\01 PLANNING\2021\21.05164.F Novers 
Hill\01 CORRESPONDENCE\01 FORMAL COMMENTS\21.05146.F FINAL.docx 

gradients have been supplied to indicate that these can 
be achieved on a suitable level.  
  

 
  
  

 
  

2 TDM object to the application on 
the basis that the proposed traffic 
calming is insufficient, visibility 
splays inadequate, and the 
proposals do not provide a 
sufficiently safe walking and cycling 
environment. 

This has not been addressed in the resubmission.  The 
applicants have not satisfactorily addressed the issues 
outlined in the substantial comments sent by TDM and 
in the subsequent Road Safety Audit review.  TDM 
continue to have a strong objection on the grounds of 
road safety. 

3 TDM object to the proposed internal 
shared use cycle and walking link 
due to its insufficient width, 
surveillance, accessibility and 
safety. 

This has not been adequately addressed in the 
resubmission.  An alternative route into the site has 
been provided to the west of the houses, which is 
stated to provide an alternative facility.   
  
A link has been indicated in the neighbouring south 
site, but the levels are inaccessible and no details of 
how any future link could be physically provided into 
the neighbouring site are available.  The indicative 
gradients in this location are prohibitive to any safe 
route through:    

Page 59



 

File Name: S:\TRAFFIC\TranPlan\City Transport\02 DEV MAN\01 PLANNING\2021\21.05164.F Novers 
Hill\01 CORRESPONDENCE\01 FORMAL COMMENTS\21.05146.F FINAL.docx 

 
In the absence of any feasible link into the 
neighbouring site this shared use path would only serve 
the residents of the development, and not address the 
safety for any other existing pedestrians and cyclists 
who would be affected by the additional traffic arising 
from the development, who would be dependent on a 
safe route alternative to the live carriageway in Novers 
Hill.  
  
The northernmost section of the cycle route has not 
been addressed and this is the steepest section of the 
route, and the concerns about safety and conflict 
between fast moving cyclists and pedestrians in this 
shared surface have not been addressed.    

4 TDM object to the proposals as they 
fail to provide for links to and 
appropriate improvements to public 
transport infrastructure.   

This has not been addressed in the resubmission. As 
point 1 above, safe and direct access is not provided to 
local public transport routes.  

5 TDM object to the internal layout on 
the basis that the gradients are 
inaccessible and not conducive to 
walking or cycling, footway widths 
are inadequate and visibility and 
turning has not been sufficiently 
demonstrated. 

Forward visibility has been clarified and addressed.   
  
Gradients are still excessive for safe walking, cycling 
and wheeling and would make the development 
dependent on car use and make it inaccessible and 
inequitable for those who have no access to a car.  This 
is particularly pertinent for the affordable housing, 
which is at the lowest part of the site.     
  
It is expected that the highway would be to an 
adoptable standard, including ensuring that the 
gradients are acceptable and the highway is structurally 
sound. To achieve this, the highway must be 
constructed to suitable engineering standard.  This will 
involve a significant amount of cut, full and structural 
works.  No AIP has been submitted and / or agreed.  In 

Page 60



 

File Name: S:\TRAFFIC\TranPlan\City Transport\02 DEV MAN\01 PLANNING\2021\21.05164.F Novers 
Hill\01 CORRESPONDENCE\01 FORMAL COMMENTS\21.05146.F FINAL.docx 

the absence of this information TDM are not fully 
satisfied that the development can be delivered safely.  
The substantial earthworks involved is likely to have a 
considerable impact on the structural integrity of the 
surrounding environment. 
  
There are still areas to the south of the site with 
inadequate footway widths.   

6 TDM object to the overprovision of 
allocated parking which exceeds 
Local Plan maximum standards. 

This has not been addressed nor rebutted in the 
resubmission. 

7 TDM object to the proposals as the 
cycle parking provision is 
inadequate in its current form. 

Not fully addressed in resubmission - there are still a lot 
of locations where cycle stores are inaccessible.   

8 TDM objects to the current waste 
storage and collection facilities as 
these are not fit for purpose.   

Not fully addressed in resubmission - there are lot of 
locations where refuse stores are inaccessible, resulting 
in obstruction of the footway if not put away properly. 

9 TDM objects as no clear CMP has 
been submitted and there is road 
safety implication of queueing on 
Novers Hill by construction vehicles. 

Not addressed as part of the re-submission.  The 
construction of the site will have significant 
environmental and traffic management matters 
needing to be addressed prior to commencement.  This 
would need to be addressed as this would raise serious 
road safety concerns.  

   
Furthermore, TDM are concerned about the impact that this development will have on the structural 
integrity of this land, and the impact that any failure or excessive terracing / structural works will have on 
the natural environment.   
 
TDM agree with the comments submitted by City Design and Ecology over the cut and fill, and the safety 
aspects of such retaining structures, which not only require significant earthworks and retaining features, 
but they also require safety barriers as indicated on the plans.   
 
TDM would therefore advise that the construction of the highway and the retaining features necessary 
from the very commencement of the scheme (including the very start of construction) is likely to have a 
significant impact on the stability of the ground, given the site’s topography.  There has been no evidence 
that this can be undertaken satisfactorily, contrary to Policy DM37.  It would take a considerable amount 
of pre-commencement information to satisfy any condition and it could be considered unreasonable to 
apply a condition that may not be able to be satisfied.   
 
In summary, the cumulative impact of the road safety and severity of the gradients in this area mean that 
TDM continue to strongly object to the proposals for the reasons as outlined below. 
   
Reasons for refusal: 

 Inadequate permeability within and to / from highway network - DM23, DM27, DM28, BCS10, 
BCS13, BCS21, NPPF, Knowle West Regeneration Framework 

 Inadequate measures to mitigate impacts of development and provide for sustainable travel 
patterns to and within the site, with insufficient provision of road safety measures, walking and 
cycling infrastructure, public transport infrastructure and travel planning provision - DM23, BCS10, 
BCS11, BCS13, NPPF 

Page 61



 

File Name: S:\TRAFFIC\TranPlan\City Transport\02 DEV MAN\01 PLANNING\2021\21.05164.F Novers 
Hill\01 CORRESPONDENCE\01 FORMAL COMMENTS\21.05146.F FINAL.docx 

 Unacceptable internal gradients rendering the site inaccessible and not allowing easy or safe 
walking and cycling - DM23, DM28, BCS10, BCS13, NPPF 

 Inadequate cycle parking and overprovision of car parking - DM23, BCS10, BCS13, NPPF 
 Inadequate waste storage and collection proposals - DM23, DM32, BCS15 

 

Page 62


	Agenda
	1 Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information
	Planning Committee Diagram v0.6 (PDF)

	4 Minutes of the previous meeting held on Tuesday 13th June 2023
	5 Action Sheet
	6 Appeals
	7 Enforcement
	9 Planning and Development
	Development Control
	19 July 2023
	Report of the Director: Economy of Place


	9a Planning Application Number 21/05164/F - Land on West Side of Novers Hill
	SITE DESCRIPTION
	RELEVANT PLANNING APPLICATION HISTORY
	APPLICATION DETAILS
	POLICY CONSIDERATION
	RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
	KEY ISSUES
	RECOMMENDED REFUSED
	Supporting Documents


